
 

 

MANASQUAN PLANNING BOARD MEETING AGENDA  

CONDUCTED WITH ZOOM 

SEPTEMBER 13, 2022 7:00 PM – TUESDAY 

 

Join Zoom Meeting 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/6652076223?pwd=WFZiUVcyQ0tqOHlrajFUa0dpRTc3Zz09  
OR 

Tel – 1-646 876 9923 US (New York) 

ID # 665 207 6223 

Password 365 120 

 

Please take notice that the Manasquan Planning Board will convene a remote meeting on September 

13, 2022 7:00 PM.  (The Board had previously advertised the said meeting, but the within notice is 

being re-advertised so as to publicize the remote nature of the same.)  Due to the 

Coronavirus/COVID-19 Borough and State Directives, the said meeting is being held remotely, 

through a web-meeting conference communication system.  The remote meeting format will allow 

Board Members and the Public to simultaneously hear, listen to, participate in, digest, observe, 

comment on, and/or otherwise object to any and all Board decisions/actions.  The remote meeting 

format, as aforesaid, will allow the Borough’s Planning Board to conduct business, without 

violating any Executive Orders, without violating any COVID-19 Health and Safety Protocol, and 

while still complying with the spirit and intent of Prevailing Provisions of New Jersey Law.  (Please 

note that the public access to the Municipal Building is not currently permitted). 

Members of the public are welcome to, and encouraged to, participate by observing/participating 

in the remote meeting.  The meeting will be held via Zoom.  You can access the meeting through 

the Zoom App via a smartphone or tablet, via a special link on your computer, or by telephone.  

Note the information printed above.   

PUBLIC MEETING 

Salute to the Flag 

Roll Call 

Sunshine Law Announcement 

 

OLD/NEW BUSINESS 

1. Approval of Vouchers 

2. Regular Meeting Minutes - December 14, 2021 

3. Regular Meeting Minutes - December 21, 2021 

4. Regular Meeting Minutes - July 5, 2022 

5. Special Meeting Minutes - July 19, 2022 

6. Perotti, Thomas - 77 Ocean Avenue - Block 157 Lot 20.01 - Application #31-2021 -

Request for Extension on Granted Variances 

 

ORDINANCES FOR REVIEW 

7.  2375-22 AMENDING CHAPTER 13 (PROPERTY MAINTENANCE) AND 

ESTABLISHING SECTION 13-7 (BAMBOO AND INVASIVE PLANTS) 

8. 2376-22 AMENDING AND SUPPLEMENTING CHAPTER 28 (STORMWATER 

REGULATIONS), SECTION 28-1.2 (APPLICABILITY) AND SECTION 28-1.3 

(GENERAL REGULATIONS), AND CHAPTER 35 (ZONING), SECTION 35-7.5 

(WALLS AND FENCES)  

1

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/6652076223?pwd=WFZiUVcyQ0tqOHlrajFUa0dpRTc3Zz09


 

 

9. 2377-22 AMENDING AND SUPPLEMENTING CHAPTER 35 (ZONING), 

SECTION 35-11.8 (ADDITIONAL LOT, HEIGHT AND YARD 

REQUIREMENTS), SECTION 35-3.1 (DEFINITIONS), SECTION 35-11.2 

(PRINCIPAL BUILDINGS), SCHEDULE 1, ATTACHMENT 1:2 (ZONING 

SCHEDULE OF BULK AND COVERAGE CONTROLS) AND SECTION 35-11.6 

(SWIMMING POOLS)  

10. 2378-22 AMENDING CHAPTER 35 (ZONING), AND ESTABLISHING 

SECTION 35-11.9.1 (OUTDOOR SHOWERS) 

11. 2380-22 AMENDING AND SUPPLEMENTING CHAPTER 35 (ZONING), 

SECTION 35-25.2 (PERMITTED SIGNS) AND SECTION 35-25.3 

(REGULATIONS APPLICABLE TO ALL ZONES) 

12. 2381-22 AMENDING AND SUPPLEMENTING CHAPTER 31 (PLANNING 

BOARD), SECTION 31-13 (RULES AND REGULATIONS)  

13. 2383-22 AMEND AND SUPPLEMENT THE DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS 

AND ZONING ORDINANCE - ZONING MAP UPDATE 

 

RESOLUTION 

14. #30-2022 120 South Street, LLC - 120 South Street - Block 70 Lot 2.04 - Application 

#04-2022 

15. #31-2022  LeBlanc, Kenneth & Ellen - 117 First Avenue - Block 168 Lot 6 - 

Application #09-2022 

 

APPLICATION 

16. #43-2021 - VFW Lodge 1838 - 30 Ridge Avenue - Block 43 Lot 4.01 (carried from 

8/2/2022) 

17. #11-2022 Henry, James Appeal of Zoning Officer's Decision - 85 Morris Avenue - 

Block 71 Lot 108 

 

OTHER BUSINESS 

Comments from individual board members 

18. Cancel September 20, 2022 Special Meeting Date 

19. Executive Session  

 

ADJOURNMENT 

2



BOROUGH OF MANASQUAN 

ORDINANCE NO. 2375-22 

 

ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 13 (PROPERTY 

MAINTENANCE) AND ESTABLISHING SECTION 13-7 

(BAMBOO AND INVASIVE PLANTS) OF THE 

BOROUGH OF MANASQUAN CODE IN THE 

BOROUGH OF MANASQUAN, COUNTY OF 

MONMOUTH, STATE OF NEW JERSEY 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Revised General Ordinance of the Borough of 

Manasquan Code, Chapter 13 refers to Property Maintenance; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Manasquan Borough Council of the Borough of Manasquan is 

desirous of establishing certain zoning requirements; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Manasquan Borough Council has determined that it is in the 

best interests of the health, safety and welfare of the residents of the Borough to amend 

these Zoning Requirements; and 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1:  Section 13-7 refers to Bamboo and Invasive Plants of the revised general 

ordinances of the Borough of Manasquan is hereby established as follows: 

 

13-7.1 No Planting of Running Bamboo or Invasive Plants 

 

A. The in-ground planting of Running Bamboo or Invasive Plants is prohibited 

in the Borough of Manasquan. 

 

B. Invasive Plants shall mean all native and non-native vines and vegetation 

that, by their nature: (i) grow beyond the borders of the property of initial 

planting or cultivation; (ii) are competitive, persistent, and pernicious; and 

(iii) cause a neighboring property owner or the Borough potential hardship 

due to the vegetation being overly competitive, poisonous, allergenic, illegal 

by State statute, or hazardous to the neighboring property’s trees, vegetation, 

structures and facilities. Examples of Invasive Plants shall include but are 

not limited to the following plant genera: Bamboo  (clumping, spreading or 

running type), Ragweed (ambrosia), Poison ivy (rhus radicans), Poison oak 

(toxicondendron vernix), Tree of heaven (Alianthus altissima), Garlic 

mustard (Alliaria petiolate), Japanese knotweed (Polygonum caspidatum), 

Mile-a-minute (Polygonum Perfoliatum), Multi flora rose (Rosa multiflora), 

Kudzu (Pueraria montana), and Porcelain berry (Ampelopsis 

brevipedunculata), and shall include the plant, and any cutting, flower, seed, 

root, other plant part, or cultivar therefrom.  

 

C. Regulation of and Limitations on Existing Invasive Plants.  

 

1. All property owners must control the growth of invasive plants on 

their property. Failure to control the significant spread of such 

vegetation beyond the boundaries of any property within the Borough 

is a violation of this section. 

2. All existing plantings must be contained by appropriate physical 

barriers to prevent growth or spread of existing invasive species 

beyond the boundaries of a resident’s property. 

3. Spread is significant when the plant’s roots grow beyond the 

boundaries of a property owner’s yard or take over or invade a 

neighbor’s fencing, plants or other landscaping. 

 

D. Removal of Invasive Species. 

 

3

Item 7.



1. In the event Invasive Species Plant(s) are present on any plot of land, or 

any other premises or place in the Borough and a complaint is received 

by the Borough regarding an encroachment of any Invasive Species Plant 

and the Borough Code Enforcement Inspector, after observation and/or 

inspection, determines that there is an encroachment or invasion of an 

Invasive Species Plant on any adjoining/neighboring private or public 

property or public right-of-way, the Borough shall serve notice to the 

Invasive Species Plant property owner, in writing, to remove or abate the 

violation within such time as shall be specified in such notice.  

2. The cost of abatement shall be borne by the Invasive Species Plant 

property owner. If the owner fails to comply with such notice within the 

time period specified herein, the Borough may remove or otherwise 

control the invasive plant species and the Borough may thereafter 

recover the cost of such removal from the property owner and place a 

lien on the property to recover the cost of said removal. 

 

E. Regulation of and Limitations on Existing Running Bamboo. 

 

1. In the event any species commonly knowing as “Running Bamboo” is 

located upon any property within the Borough of Manasquan, prior to 

the effective date of this prohibition, the owner and occupant of said 

property shall jointly and severally be required to confine such species 

to prevent encroachment, spread, invasion or intrusion of same onto any 

other private or public property or public right-of-way. In lieu of 

confining the species, the property owner or occupant may elect to 

totally remove the bamboo from the property. Failure to properly 

confine such bamboo shall require removal as set forth below. The cost 

of said removal shall be at the bamboo property owner’s expense.  

 

F. Removal of Running Bamboo 

 

1. Whenever running bamboo, as defined by this Chapter, is found on any 

plot of land, lot or any other premises or place, as is found to lack 

appropriate physical barriers to prevent the spread or growth of the 

species, or is found to have spread beyond the boundaries of a property, 

violations shall be given to the owner of the property from which the 

invasive species have spread, in writing, to remove or abate the same 

within thirty days. The cost of all remedies, including the removal of 

plantings of invasive plants, shall be borne by the property owner. 

 

G. Penalty 

 

1. Any person violating the provisions of this Chapter shall, upon 

conviction, be punished by a fine or not more than $2,000.00, or 

community service, as determined by the Municipal Court of the 

Borough of Manasquan. A continuation of such violation for each 

successive day shall constitute a separate offense and the person or 

persons allowing or permitting the continuation of such violation will be 

punished as provided above for each separate offense. 

 

Section 2: Construction and effective date 

(a) Should any section or provision of this ordinance be held invalid in any proceedings, 

the same shall not affect any other section or provision of this ordinance, except 

insofar as the section or provisions so held invalid shall be inseparable from the 

remainder of any such section or provision. 

(b) Chapter 97, et seq., of the Borough of Manasquan Code and all ordinances and parts 

of ordinances inconsistent with this Ordinance herewith are hereby repealed. 

(c) This ordinance shall become effective following its final passage and publication 

according to the law. 

4

Item 7.



NOTICE 

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that Ordinance No. 2375-22 is being 

introduced at a meeting of the Mayor and Council of the Borough of Manasquan on the 

6th day of September 2022 and read for the first time.  The said Ordinance is going to 

be considered for final passage by the Mayor and Council at Borough Hall, 201 East 

Main Street, Manasquan, NJ 08736 at 7:00 p.m. on the 3rd day of October 2022.  At 

such time and place, or at any such time or place to which said meting may be adjourned, 

all interested persons will be given an opportunity to be heard concerning said 

ordinance.  A copy of this ordinance can be obtained without cost by any member of the 

general public at the office of the Municipal Clerk in Borough Hall between the hours 

of 9:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. on Monday through Friday, except on legal holidays. 

 

      _________________________________ 

      BARBARA ILARIA, RMC, CMC 

      Municipal Clerk 

 

Mark G. Kitrick, Esquire 

Municipal Attorney 

2329 Route 34 S  

Suite 104 

Manasquan, NJ  08736 

 

 

Passed on First Reading and Introduction: September 6, 2022 

Approved on Second Reading and Final Hearing: October 3, 2022 

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Edward G. Donovan 

Mayor 

    

 

5

Item 7.



BOROUGH OF MANASQUAN 

ORDINANCE NO. 2376-22 

 

ORDINANCE AMENDING AND SUPPLEMENTING 

CHAPTER 28 (STORMWATER REGULATIONS), 

SECTION 28-1.2 (APPLICABILITY) AND SECTION 28-

1.3 (GENERAL REGULATIONS), AND CHAPTER 35 

(ZONING), SECTION 35-7.5 (WALLS AND FENCES) OF 

THE BOROUGH OF MANASQUAN CODE IN THE 

BOROUGH OF MANASQUAN, COUNTY OF 

MONMOUTH, STATE OF NEW JERSEY 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Revised General Ordinance of the Borough of 

Manasquan Code, Section 28-1.2 refers to Applicability, Section 28-1.3 refers to 

General Regulations and Section 35-7.5 refers to Walls and Fences; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Manasquan Borough Council of the Borough of Manasquan is 

desirous of amending certain zoning requirements; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Manasquan Borough Council has determined that it is in the 

best interests of the health, safety and welfare of the residents of the Borough to amend 

these Zoning Requirements; and 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1:  Section 28-1.2 refers to Applicability of the revised general ordinances of 

the Borough of Manasquan is hereby Amended as follows: 

 

This section applies to all new construction or development, the expansion of an existing 

building footprint by more than 500 square feet, because such improvements impact 

water runoff to neighboring properties, public streets and storm drains, and 

displacement of ground water. 

 

Section 2:  Section 28-1.3 refers to General Regulations of the revised general 

ordinances of the Borough of Manasquan is hereby Amended as follows: 

 

The general regulations established by this section are as follows: 

a. The basement or crawl space floor level of any new structure, or the basement 

or crawl space floor level of an expansion of an existing structure by more than 

500 square feet must be at least one foot above the seasonal high groundwater 

level as certified by a professional engineer. The certification shall be based on 

soil borings and other recognized criteria used to determine seasonal high 

groundwater levels. 

b. No sump pump outlet shall drain or be pumped directly or indirectly onto a 

sidewalk or public street. A sump pump outlet must be terminated within the 

area of the lot on which it is located. 

 

c. Irrigation sprinklers shall not discharge water onto a public street. 

 

d. Curbs and driveway aprons shall be constructed pursuant to Section 20-3 of 

Chapter 20 (Streets and Sidewalks). 

 

e. Concrete, asphalt and paver driveways must be crowned to direct the flow of 

stormwater onto the lot on which the improvements are constructed. There shall 

be no curb reveal at the edges of a driveway. 

 

f. The lot must be graded so that stormwater does not flow onto neighboring 

properties. 

 

6

Item 8.



g. Water from a gutter, downspout or sump pump must be piped directly into a 

drywell or seepage pit installed on the lot, except that this provision shall not 

apply to properties in the R-4 Zone. The drywell or seepage pit must be 

constructed to meet the following criteria: 

 

1. The drywell or seepage pit system shall be designated to contain 

stormwater runoff from one inch of precipitation in a twenty-four-hour 

period. 

2. No such water shall enter the municipal sanitary sewer system. 

 

h. All drainage plans to demonstrate compliance with the requirements of this 

section must be submitted to the Zoning Officer prior to the issuance of a 

construction permit. 

 

Section 3:  Section 35-7.5 refers to Walls and Fences of the revised general ordinances 

of the Borough of Manasquan is hereby Amended as follows: 

 

a. No wall/fence shall be erected, maintained or planted to a height greater than six 

feet above the existing grade of the property, provided that the same is more than 

25 feet from any street line. No wall/fence shall be erected, maintained or 

planted to a height greater than four feet within 25 feet of any street line. 

 

b. No fence/wall shall be erected, maintained or equipped with or having barbed 

wire, spikes, broken glass, sharp or dangerous devices or any electrical charge 

sufficient to cause a shock, except that business and public properties within the 

Borough may be enclosed with fences having barbed wire barriers, provided that 

all such barbed wire is kept at least six feet above ground level. 

 

c. The finished side of any fence shall face the outside of the property it encloses. 

 

d. No wall/fence shall be erected, maintained or planted on any lot which 

unreasonably obstructs or interferes with traffic visibility on a curve or at any 

street intersection. 

e. No fence/wall shall be constructed unless the owner or the person in possession 

of the lands on which the fence is to be constructed shall first obtain a zoning 

permit from the Zoning Officer prior to the commencement of construction. An 

application for the permit must be submitted in writing to the Zoning Officer, 

together with a plan, and must be accompanied by a fee in the amount as stated 

in Chapter 16, Fees. 

 

f. No fence/wall shall be erected, maintained or planted in the front yard on 

property located in the R-4 Beachfront One Family Residential Zone. A fence 

not more than six feet in height may be located in the side and rear yards 

provided the fence does not extend beyond the front of the building line of the 

adjacent properties. A solid fence is prohibited. 

 

Section 4: Construction and effective date 

(a) Should any section or provision of this ordinance be held invalid in any proceedings, 

the same shall not affect any other section or provision of this ordinance, except 

insofar as the section or provisions so held invalid shall be inseparable from the 

remainder of any such section or provision. 

(b) Chapter 97, et seq., of the Borough of Manasquan Code and all ordinances and parts 

of ordinances inconsistent with this Ordinance herewith are hereby repealed. 

(c) This ordinance shall become effective following its final passage and publication 

according to the law. 

7

Item 8.



NOTICE 

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that Ordinance No. 2376-22 is being 

introduced at a meeting of the Mayor and Council of the Borough of Manasquan on the 

6th day of September 2022 and read for the first time.  The said Ordinance is going to 

be considered for final passage by the Mayor and Council at Borough Hall, 201 East 

Main Street, Manasquan, NJ 08736 at 7:00p.m. on the 3rd day of October 2022.  At such 

time and place, or at any such time or place to which said meting may be adjourned, all 

interested persons will be given an opportunity to be heard concerning said ordinance.  

A copy of this ordinance can be obtained without cost by any member of the general 

public at the office of the Municipal Clerk in Borough Hall between the hours of 9:00 

a.m. and 4:00 p.m. on Monday through Friday, except on legal holidays. 

 

      _________________________________ 

      BARBARA ILARIA, RMC, CMC 

      Municipal Clerk 

 

Mark G. Kitrick, Esquire 

Municipal Attorney 

2329 Route 34 S  

Suite 104 

Manasquan, NJ  08736 

 

 

Passed on First Reading and Introduction: September 6, 2022 

Approved on Second Reading and Final Hearing: October 3, 2022 

 

 

 

__________________________ 

Edward G. Donovan 

Mayor 

    

 

8

Item 8.



BOROUGH OF MANASQUAN 

ORDINANCE NO. 2377-22 

ORDINANCE AMENDING AND SUPPLEMENTING 

CHAPTER 35 (ZONING), SECTION 35-11.8 

(ADDITIONAL LOT, HEIGHT AND YARD 

REQUIREMENTS), SECTION 35-3.1 (DEFINITIONS), 

SECTION 35-11.2 (PRINCIPAL BUILDINGS), 

SCHEDULE 1, ATTACHMENT 1:2 (ZONING 

SCHEDULE OF BULK AND COVERAGE CONTROLS) 

AND SECTION 35-11.6 (SWIMMING POOLS) OF THE 

BOROUGH OF MANASQUAN CODE IN THE 

BOROUGH OF MANASQUAN, COUNTY OF 

MONMOUTH, STATE OF NEW JERSEY 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Revised General Ordinance of the Borough of 

Manasquan Code, Section 35-11.8 refers to Additional Lot, Height and Yard 

Requirements, Section 35-3.1 refers to Definitions, Section 35-11.2 refers to Principal 

buildings, Schedule 1, Attachment 1:2 refers to Zoning Schedule of Bulk and Coverage 

Controls, and Section 35-11.6 refers to Swimming Pools; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Manasquan Borough Council of the Borough of Manasquan is 

desirous of amending certain zoning requirements; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Manasquan Borough Council has determined that it is in the 

best interests of the health, safety and welfare of the residents of the Borough to amend 

these Zoning Requirements; and 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1:  35-11.8 refers to Additional Lot, Height and Yard Requirements of the 

revised general ordinances of the Borough of Manasquan is hereby Amended as follows: 

 

a. No deck shall be constructed above the highest finished floor of any building or 

structure; 

 

b. A widow's walk having a maximum floor area of 50 square feet is permitted 

provided that it is uncovered and that the sole access to the widow's walk is from 

within the interior of the building; 

 

c. No steps, stairs, entry porch, platform, landing, shower enclosure, standby 

generators, pool equipment, air conditioning condensing units, or mechanical 

equipment shall be constructed, located or maintained in any required side yard 

setback area. Note: Standby generators must be screened so that it is not visible 

from the adjacent properties. Note: Outdoor showers are prohibited in the front 

yard. Refer to Section 35-11.9.1.; 

 

d. An uncovered and unscreened entry porch, platform or landing leading to a 

basement, cellar or first floor which is not more than five feet wide may project 

not more than three feet (not including steps) into the required front or rear yard 

setback area, provided the floor of the porch is within three feet of ground level; 

 

e. Entry steps or stairs may be located in the required front and rear setback areas; 

 

f. An open terrace, deck or patio, but not including a roofed over porch or terrace 

and not more than three feet above the surrounding grade may be located in the 

front yard provided that the unoccupied portion of the front yard has a depth of 

at least 10 feet; 

 

g. A one-story bay window may project into a front yard not more than three feet; 

9

Item 9.



 

h. Roof overhangs and chimneys may project not more than 18 inches into the 

required side setback area; 

 

 

i. For existing residential principal buildings located in Flood Hazard Zones V and 

A as reflected on the most current FEMA Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) as 

released on December 15, 2012, steps and/or stairs required to be extended as a 

result of the building being raised shall be permitted to extend into any required 

front, rear or side yard setback, but not into the public right-of-way. For new 

residential construction located in Flood Hazard Zones V and A as reflected on 

the most current FEMA Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) as released on 

December 15, 2012, steps and/or stairs may be located in the front and rear 

setback areas; 

 

j. Ground level decks, freestanding decks and/or patios not more than 8 inches 

above the surrounding grade must be setback a minimum of 5 feet from the side 

and rear property lines on interior lots. On corner lots, the deck or patio must 

meet the side setback for the principal building. Properties located on a Lagoon 

the rear deck can be extended to the Bulkhead; 

 

k. Notwithstanding the provisions of Subsections a and f above, residential 

principal buildings located in Flood Hazard Zones V and A as reflected on the 

most current FEMA Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM), as released on 

December 12, 2012, may construct first-floor decks in the front and rear yards 

at a height not to exceed the level of the first floor of the structure. 

 

l. Maximum building height for all garage apartment buildings facing First 

Avenue in Flood Hazard Zone V as reflected on the most current FEMA Flood 

Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) as released on December 15, 2012, shall be in 

accordance with § 35-9.4. 

 

Section 2:  Section 35-3.1 refers to Definitions of the revised general ordinances of the 

Borough of Manasquan is hereby Amended as follows: 

 

BUILDING HEIGHT 

 

The vertical distance from the reference datum to the highest point of the structure. (a) 

single frontage or comer properties — height shall be measured from the top of the curb 

or in the absence of the curb from the crown of the road or in the absence of a road with 

a crown, then from the average of the grades at the center of each street front (or the 

monumented borough beach walk in the case of structures contiguous to the beachfront). 

(b) properties with opposite frontages — heights from the lot midpoint to the respective 

right-of-way line shall be measured from the top of the curb or in the absence of a curb 

from the crown of the road or in the absence of a road with a crown, then from the grade 

at the center of the street front or the monumented Borough beach walk in the case of 

structures contiguous to the beachfront. A decorative cupola not more than 3 feet by 3 

feet by 3 feet high may be added to the roof of a single-family dwelling. 

 

CUPOLA 

 

A small dome like structure on the roof of a building or structure and designed to provide 

ventilation and/or decoration. Maximum dimension of 3 feet by 3 feet by 3 feet in 

height. 

 

DORMER 

 

A projection from a roof that contains a window is set back a minimum of two feet from 

the exterior vertical building wall beneath the dormer. In the R-4 Zone, no dormer shall 

exceed ten (10) feet in length measured along the fascia. 

 

10

Item 9.



FLAG LOT 

 

A lot not meeting the minimum frontage requirements and where access to the public 

road is provided by a narrower extension of the lot encompassing a driveway or by 

private right-of-way easement. 

 

GARAGE, PRIVATE 

 

A structure that is an accessory to the principal building and that is used for the storage 

of motor vehicles and in which no occupation, business or service for profit is carried 

on. A portion of a garage not to exceed 50% may be used as a pool house etc. to include 

a kitchen, bath, bar and changing area. The remaining portion of the garage must be 

used for parking of a vehicle or for storage. 

 

MOTHER/DAUGHTER HOUSING 

 

A single-family dwelling that offers a semi-independent living space within the 

principal dwelling unit for a parent(s). The living space must be located within the 

principal dwelling and can only be accessed through the existing dwelling and not by a 

separate entrance. A fully independent dwelling unit is not permitted. 

 

Section 3: Section 35-11.2 refers to Principal Buildings of the revised general 

ordinances of the Borough of Manasquan is hereby Amended as follows: 

a. Only one principal building shall be permitted on each lot, except in 

conjunction with townhouse and planned multi-family residential 

development. 

 

b. Two principal buildings shall be permitted on a lot in the R-4 Beachfront One-

Family Residential Zone provided that: 

1. A garage with a second floor living unit shall front on First Avenue and 

a single-family residential dwelling shall front on the beachfront. 

2. The minimum lot width shall be 30 feet. 

3. The minimum lot area shall be 4,200 square feet. 

4. The building facing the beachfront shall be set back a minimum 

distance of fifteen (15) feet from the front property line. 

5. The garage apartment building facing First Avenue shall be set back a 

minimum distance of 10 feet from that property line. 

6. The two buildings shall be separated a minimum distance of 35 feet 

from each building. 

7. The maximum height of the garage apartment building facing First 

Avenue shall be 32 feet. 

8. The maximum height of the single-family dwelling facing the 

beachfront shall be 38 feet for conforming lots and 33 feet for 

nonconforming lots. 

9. The first-floor garage area of the building facing First Avenue shall 

provide an interior parking area for at least two motor vehicles. Any 

excess first floor area may be used for storage purposes, except vertical 

access to the second floor; provided, however, no living area is 

permitted on the first-floor garage area. 

10. The garage apartment building facing First Avenue shall have a 

walkway, with a minimum width of three feet, to provide access to the 

beachfront. 

11. Each building shall be serviced by separate water and sewer lines. 

12. No single dormer shall exceed 10 feet in length measured along the 

fascia. 

11

Item 9.



13. All dormers, except stairwell and/or elevator dormers must be stepped 

back a minimum of two feet from the exterior wall beneath it. 

14. A half-story must comply with the requirements outlined in § 35-3. 

15. The property shall comply with all other standards applicable in the R-4 

Zone. 

 

Section 4: Section 35-11.6 refers to Swimming Pools of the revised general ordinances 

of the Borough of Manasquan is hereby Amended as follows: 

 

A swimming pool or wading pool must be located in the rear yard only. The pool must 

be setback a minimum of 10 feet from the side and rear property lines on interior lots. 

On a corner lot, the pool must be setback to meet the minimum side setback for the 

principal building. 

 

Notwithstanding the above provision, any temporary wading pool, which is not more 

than 12 inches in depth, may be located in the front yard provided that the pool is 

emptied daily no later than 7 p.m. and not filled before 9 a.m. 

 

Section 5: Schedule 1, Attachment 1:2  refers to Zoning Schedule of Bulk and Coverage 

Controls of the revised general ordinances of the Borough of Manasquan is hereby 

Amended as follows: 

 

a. Aggregate depth of front and rear yards shall not be less than 30 feet and 

no yard shall be less than 10 feet. A minimum setback of 15 feet shall be 

required from the monumented Borough beachfront line;  

 

b. Maximum permitted density shall be 10 dwelling units per acre; 

 

c. Maximum permitted density shall be 16 dwelling units per acre; 

 

d. None required if fireproof construction; 

 

e. Permitted height for conforming lots only. For nonconforming lots, refer 

to Sections 35-12.1, 35-12.2, 35-12.3. For properties located in Flood 

Zones A and V, refer to Sections 35-11.3b, 35.11c, and 35-11d;  

 

f. For accessory structures and uses, a 5-foot setback is permitted unless 

more restrictive regulations are established elsewhere in this ordinance; 

 

g. Front yard setback distance may be reduced to the average of front yard 

setbacks of principal structures on all developed properties on the same 

side of the street within 200 feet of the property as documented by a map 

prepared by a licensed Land Surveyor; 

 

h. The building height and building envelope for individual dwelling units, 

either attached or detached, shall comply with footnote (f) of this 

Schedule I;  

 

i. Chimneys, stacks, vents, roof overhangs and gutters shall not project 

more than eighteen (18) inches into or over any required side yard 

setback line in the residential zones. Any projection over eighteen (18) 

inches shall be considered part of the principal structure and shall 

conform to all required side yard setback requirements; 

 

j. The maximum height for single-family dwellings facing the beachfront 

shall be thirty-eight (38) feet for conforming lots and thirty-three (33) for 

non-conforming lots. 

 

 

 

12

Item 9.

https://ecode360.com/35150304#35150304


Section 6: Construction and effective date 

(a) Should any section or provision of this ordinance be held invalid in any proceedings, 

the same shall not affect any other section or provision of this ordinance, except 

insofar as the section or provisions so held invalid shall be inseparable from the 

remainder of any such section or provision. 

(b) Chapter 97, et seq., of the Borough of Manasquan Code and all ordinances and parts 

of ordinances inconsistent with this Ordinance herewith are hereby repealed. 

(c) This ordinance shall become effective following its final passage and publication 

according to the law. 

13

Item 9.



NOTICE 

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that Ordinance No. 2377-22 is being 

introduced at a meeting of the Mayor and Council of the Borough of Manasquan on the 

6th day of September 2022 and read for the first time.  The said Ordinance is going to 

be considered for final passage by the Mayor and Council at Borough Hall, 201 East 

Main Street, Manasquan, NJ 08736 at 7:00p.m. on the 3rd day of October 2022.  At such 

time and place, or at any such time or place to which said meting may be adjourned, all 

interested persons will be given an opportunity to be heard concerning said ordinance.  

A copy of this ordinance can be obtained without cost by any member of the general 

public at the office of the Municipal Clerk in Borough Hall between the hours of 9:00 

a.m. and 4:00 p.m. on Monday through Friday, except on legal holidays. 

 

      _________________________________ 

      BARBARA ILARIA, RMC, CMC 

      Municipal Clerk 

 

Mark G. Kitrick, Esquire 

Municipal Attorney 

2329 Route 34 S  

Suite 104 

Manasquan, NJ  08736 

 

 

Passed on First Reading and Introduction: September 6, 2022 

Approved on Second Reading and Final Hearing: October 3, 2022 

 

 

 

      

Edward G. Donovan 

Mayor 

     

  

 

14

Item 9.



BOROUGH OF MANASQUAN 

ORDINANCE NO. 2378-22 

ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 35 (ZONING), 

AND ESTABLISHING SECTION 35-11.9.1 (OUTDOOR 

SHOWERS) OF THE BOROUGH OF MANASQUAN 

CODE IN THE BOROUGH OF MANASQUAN, COUNTY 

OF MONMOUTH, STATE OF NEW JERSEY 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Revised General Ordinance of the Borough of 

Manasquan Code, Chapter 35 does not address the location of outdoor showers; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Manasquan Borough Council of the Borough of Manasquan is 

desirous of establishing zoning requirements for the use of outdoor showers; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Manasquan Borough Council has determined that it is in the 

best interests of the health, safety and welfare of the residents of the Borough to provide 

regulations for outdoor showers; and 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1:  35-11.9.1, Outdoor Showers, is hereby established in the Revised General 

Ordinances of the Borough of Manasquan as follows: 

 

a. No outdoor shower shall be located in the front yard. 

 

Section 2:  Construction and effective date 

(a) Should any section or provision of this ordinance be held invalid in any proceedings, 

the same shall not affect any other section or provision of this ordinance, except 

insofar as the section or provisions so held invalid shall be inseparable from the 

remainder of any such section or provision. 

(b) Chapter 97, et seq., of the Borough of Manasquan Code and all ordinances and parts 

of ordinances inconsistent with this Ordinance herewith are hereby repealed. 

(c) This ordinance shall become effective following its final passage and publication 

according to the law. 

15

Item 10.



NOTICE 

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that Ordinance No. 2378-22 is being 

introduced at a meeting of the Mayor and Council of the Borough of Manasquan on the 

6th day of  September 2022 and read for the first time.  The said Ordinance is going to 

be considered for final passage by the Mayor and Council at Borough Hall, 201 East 

Main Street, Manasquan, NJ 08736 at 7:00p.m. on the 3rd day of October 2022.  At such 

time and place, or at any such time or place to which said meting may be adjourned, all 

interested persons will be given an opportunity to be heard concerning said ordinance.  

A copy of this ordinance can be obtained without cost by any member of the general 

public at the office of the Municipal Clerk in Borough Hall between the hours of 9:00 

a.m. and 4:00 p.m. on Monday through Friday, except on legal holidays. 

 

      _________________________________ 

      Barbara Ilaria, RMC, CMC 

      Municipal Clerk 

 

Mark G. Kitrick, Esquire 

Municipal Attorney 

2329 Route 34 S  

Suite 104 

Manasquan, NJ  08736 

 

 

Passed on First Reading and Introduction: September 6, 2022 

Approved on Second Reading and Final Hearing: October 3, 2022 

 

 

 

     __________________________________ 

EDWARD G. DONOVAN 

Mayor 

     

 

16

Item 10.



1 
 

BOROUGH OF MANASQUAN 

ORDINANCE NO. 2380-22 

 

ORDINANCE AMENDING AND SUPPLEMENTING 

CHAPTER 35 (ZONING), SECTION 35-25.2 

(PERMITTED SIGNS) AND SECTION 35-25.3 

(REGULATIONS APPLICABLE TO ALL ZONES) OF 

THE BOROUGH OF MANASQUAN CODE IN THE 

BOROUGH OF MANASQUAN, COUNTY OF 

MONMOUTH, STATE OF NEW JERSEY 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Revised General Ordinance of the Borough of 

Manasquan Code, Section 35-25.2 refers to Permitted Signs and Section 35-25.3 refers 

to Regulations Applicable to All Zones; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Manasquan Borough Council of the Borough of Manasquan is 

desirous of amending certain zoning requirements; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Manasquan Borough Council has determined that it is in the 

best interests of the health, safety and welfare of the residents of the Borough to amend 

these Zoning Requirements; and 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1:  Section 35-25.2 refers to Permitted Sign Requirements of the revised general 

ordinances of the Borough of Manasquan is hereby Amended as follows: 

 

a. The following signs shall be permitted in the R-1, R-2, R-3, R-4 and R-5 zones: 

 

1. For each dwelling unit, one unlighted nameplate not exceeding one square 

foot in area and bearing the name of the occupant. 

2. For any structure other than a dwelling unit, one identification sign not 

exceeding eight square feet, except a church bulletin board, which shall not 

exceed 18 square feet. Signs erected for use under this section may be 

illuminated with a constant source of light, provided that the light is shielded to 

prevent glare and annoyance to adjacent residential uses. 

 

3. A sign advertising the premises upon which it is located "for sale" or "for 

rent," not exceeding four square feet in area. Not more than one sign shall be 

permitted. 

 

4. Signs designating entrances or exits to or from a parking area are permitted 

and shall not exceed two square feet each. 

 

5. Development signs designed for advertising the sale or development of the 

premises upon which they are erected, when erected in connection with the 

development of the premises by a builder, contractor, developer or other persons 

interested in such sale or development, may be erected and maintained, provided 

that: 

(a) The size of any sign is not in excess of 6 square feet; and 

(b) Not more than one sign is placed upon any property; and 

(c) Any such sign shall be removed by the developer within three weeks 

of the final sale of the property; and 

(d) Any freestanding sign shall not exceed four feet in height and shall 

not be closer than three feet from any property line and shall not be 

located in any manner which will impede full vehicular visibility at street 

intersections, driveways or exits. A sign permit is not required for such 

temporary contractor signs 

 

6. Directional signs indicating the location and direction of premises in the 

Borough available for or in process of development in the Borough, but not 

17

Item 11.



2 
 

erected upon such premises, and having inscribed thereon the name of the owner, 

developer, builder or agent may be erected, by permit, and maintained, provided 

that: 

(a) The size of any such sign is not in excess of six square feet and not 

in excess of four feet in length; and 

(b) Not more than one such sign is erected for each development; and 

(c) Any such sign shall be removed by developer within three weeks of 

the final sale of the property. 

 

7. Private driveway signs indicating the private nature of a driveway or 

trespassing signs, provided that the size of any such sign shall not exceed two 

square feet. 

 

b. The following signs shall be permitted in B-1, B-2, C and I zones: 

 

1. Any sign displayed flat against the wall of a building and which does not 

project above the roof line. Only one sign per face of a building for each business 

occupying that building shall be permitted and the total sign area on any building 

face shall not exceed two square feet for each foot of building frontage. 

 

2. Free-standing signs supported by one or more columns or uprights which are 

firmly embedded in the ground, subject to the following restrictions: 

(a) Exposed guide wires, chains or other connections shall not be made 

a permanent support of a free-standing sign. 

(b) The total aggregate surface area of the sign shall not exceed nine 

square feet. The maximum height of the sign shall not exceed 10 feet nor 

shall the sign be closer than six inches to the ground. 

(c) The sign shall be in conformity with the character of the zone and 

other signs in the zone so that it blends in with the overall architectural 

scheme. 

(d) The sign shall be set back at least 10 feet from the curbline. 

 

3. A sign advertising the premises upon which it is located "for sale" or "for 

rent," not exceeding four square feet in area. Not more than one sign shall be 

permitted. 

 

4. Development signs designed for advertising the sale or development of the 

premises upon which they are erected, when erected in connection with the 

development of the premises by a builder, contractor, developer or other persons 

interested in such sale or development, may be erected and maintained, provided 

that: 

(a) The size of any sign is not in excess of 6 square feet; and 

(b) Not more than one sign is placed upon any property; and 

(c) Any such sign shall be removed by the developer within three weeks 

of the final sale of the property and 

(d) Any freestanding sign shall not exceed four feet in height and shall 

not be closer than three feet from any property line and shall not be 

located in any manner which will impede full vehicular visibility at street 

intersections, driveways or exits. A sign permit is not required for such 

temporary contract signs. 

 

5. The total aggregate surface area of all signs on a lot in the B-1, B-2, B-3, C 

and I zones shall not exceed 100 square feet. 

 

Section 2:  Section 35-25.3 refers to Sign Regulations Applicable in All Zones of the 

revised general ordinances of the Borough of Manasquan is hereby Amended as follows: 

 

a. No sign shall be placed in or extend over the line of any public street, right-of-

way, curb or sidewalk area. 

b. Billboards are prohibited throughout the Borough of Manasquan. 

18

Item 11.



3 
 

c. A permit shall not be required for the erection, alteration or maintenance of any 

signs permitted in a residential district. 

d. Signs must be constructed of durable materials, maintained in good condition 

and not allowed to become dilapidated. 

e. All signs, together with all supports, braces, anchors, etc., shall be kept in 

continual repair, including the replacement of defective parts, repainting, 

cleaning and otherwise in a presentable condition. 

f. No sign shall be served by overhead utility service. 

g. No sign shall be maintained at any location where, by reason of color, 

illumination, position, size or shape, may obstruct, impair, obscure or be 

confused with any traffic control sign, signal or device, or where it may interfere 

with, mislead or confuse vehicular traffic. 

h. Signs shall not obstruct any window, door or other opening used as a means of 

regular ingress and egress or for required legal light and ventilation or fire 

escapes and other openings for emergency access and escape. 

i. Signs attached to or placed on a vehicle, including trailers, that are parked on 

public or private property shall be prohibited. This provision is not to be 

construed as prohibiting the identification of a firm or its principal products on 

a vehicle during normal hours of business; provided, however, that no such 

vehicle shall be parked on public or private property with signs attached or 

placed on the vehicle for the purpose of advertising a business or firm or calling 

attention to the location of a business or firm. 

j. No sign may be placed on or attached to a building or erected independently for 

any purpose other than to advertise a permitted business or use conducted on the 

same premises. 

k. No sign shall be attached to trees, fence posts, stumps, utility poles or other 

signs. No flags, pennants or similar objects may be attached or displayed on 

signs. 

l. No sign shall project beyond the building in a manner placing it above an area 

traversed by motor vehicles, such as but not limited to, driveway and parking 

areas. 

m. Illuminated signs shall be arranged as to reflect the light and glare away from 

adjoining premises and away from adjoining highways. 

n. No sign with red, green or blue illumination in a beam, beacon or flashing form 

resembling an emergency light shall be permitted. 

o. The area of a sign shall be measured around the outside edges of a framed or 

enclosed sign or by the area utilized by isolated words and/or symbols, including 

the background, whether open or enclosed, but the sign area shall not include 

any supporting framework and bracing incidental to the display thereof. 

p. Any sign having two exposures shall be measured for area using the surface of 

one side of the sign only. Both sides of the sign may be used for display 

purposes. 

q. All fascia or attached signs shall be firmly attached to the exterior wall of the 

building and shall not project more than 15 inches from the building. 

r. Interior signs shall be permitted and no permit shall be required for erection 

and/or maintenance of such signs; provided however, that an interior sign shall 

not exceed 10% of the total sign area and not more than five interior signs shall 

be located in any structure. 

s. Street number designations, postal boxes, on-site directional and parking signs 

and warning signs are permitted and shall not be considered in calculating 

maximum permitted sign area. No such sign shall exceed two square feet in area, 

nor shall a permit be required for such signs. 

19

Item 11.



4 
 

t. Temporary signs relating to special civic or public events may be maintained for 

a period not to exceed 10 days prior to the date of the event and must be removed 

within five days after the event has taken place. A permit shall not be required 

for the erection or maintenance of any temporary sign. 

u. One temporary contractor advertising sign may be erected on any lot with a 

structure undergoing construction, repair or improvement. No sign shall be 

erected  more than two days before work begins, and no sign shall remain erected 

for more thanthree days after completion of work or for a period of three weeks, 

whichever is less. Such signs may be erected as either a facade sign or a 

freestanding sign and shall not exceed six square feet in area. Any freestanding 

sign shall not exceed four feet in height and shall be not closer than three feet 

from any property line and shall not be located in any manner which will impede 

full vehicular visibility at street intersections, driveways or exits. A sign permit 

is not required for such temporary contractor signs. 

v. Temporary flags, banners or streamers, erected in conformance with the 

provisions of this chapter, may be maintained for a period not to exceed 14 days, 

four times within any calendar year. A zoning application must be approved by 

the Zoning Officer prior to the installation of any flag, banner or streamer. 

w. Banners advertising special sales or products on private property, erected in 

conformance with the provisions of this chapter, may be maintained for a period 

not to exceed 14 days, four times within any calendar year. A zoning application 

must be approved by the Zoning Officer prior to the installation of any such 

banner. 

x. The display or maintenance of blow-up figurines used for commercial or 

advertising purposes is prohibited. 

y. Neon signs are prohibited. 

z. A-frame signs are prohibited, except for the display and maintenance of one A-

frame sign not to exceed four square feet utilized for directional purposes, 

provided that such directional sign may not be placed within a public right-of-

way. 

aa. Painting or marking of buildings and structures for advertising or promotional 

events is prohibited. 

bb. Any sign which is designed so that characters, letters or illustrations can be 

changed or rearranged without altering the face or the surface of the sign shall 

be prohibited in all zones. This shall include all signage inclusive of billboards. 

Governmental signs erected or authorized by a government unit shall be exempt 

from this amendment. 

cc. Signs using mechanical devices, electrical devices or both to revolve, flash or 

display movement or the illusion of movement are prohibited in all zones. 

Governmental signs erected or authorized by a government unit shall be exempt 

from this amendment. 

 

Section 3: Construction and effective date 

(a) Should any section or provision of this ordinance be held invalid in any proceedings, 

the same shall not affect any other section or provision of this ordinance, except 

insofar as the section or provisions so held invalid shall be inseparable from the 

remainder of any such section or provision. 

(b) Chapter 97, et seq., of the Borough of Manasquan Code and all ordinances and parts 

of ordinances inconsistent with this Ordinance herewith are hereby repealed. 

(c) This ordinance shall become effective following its final passage and publication 

according to the law. 

20

Item 11.



5 
 

NOTICE 

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that Ordinance No. 2380-22 is being 

introduced at a meeting of the Mayor and Council of the Borough of Manasquan on the 

6th day of September 2022 and read for the first time.  The said Ordinance is going to 

be considered for final passage by the Mayor and Council at Borough Hall, 201 East 

Main Street, Manasquan, NJ 08736 at 7:00p.m. on the 3rd day of October 2022.  At such 

time and place, or at any such time or place to which said meting may be adjourned, all 

interested persons will be given an opportunity to be heard concerning said ordinance.  

A copy of this ordinance can be obtained without cost by any member of the general 

public at the office of the Municipal Clerk in Borough Hall between the hours of 9:00 

a.m. and 4:00 p.m. on Monday through Friday, except on legal holidays. 

 

      _________________________________ 

      BARBARA ILARIA, RMC, CMC 

      Municipal Clerk 

 

Mark G. Kitrick, Esquire 

Municipal Attorney 

2329 Route 34 S  

Suite 104 

Manasquan, NJ  08736 

 

 

Passed on First Reading and Introduction: September 6, 2022 

Approved on Second Reading and Final Hearing: October 3, 2022 

 

 

      

Edward G. Donovan 

Mayor 

     

  

 

 

 

21

Item 11.



BOROUGH OF MANASQUAN 

ORDINANCE NO. 2381-22 

 

ORDINANCE AMENDING AND SUPPLEMENTING 

CHAPTER 31 (PLANNING BOARD), SECTION 31-13 

(RULES AND REGULATIONS) OF THE BOROUGH OF 

MANASQUAN CODE IN THE BOROUGH OF 

MANASQUAN, COUNTY OF MONMOUTH, STATE OF 

NEW JERSEY 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Revised General Ordinance of the Borough of 

Manasquan Code, Section 31-13 refers to Rules and Regulations; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Manasquan Borough Council of the Borough of Manasquan is 

desirous of amending certain zoning requirements; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Manasquan Borough Council has determined that it is in the 

best interests of the health, safety and welfare of the residents of the Borough to amend 

these Zoning Requirements; and 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1:  Section 31-13 refers to Rules and Regulations of the revised general 

ordinances of the Borough of Manasquan is hereby Amended as follows: 

 

The Planning Board shall adopt such rules and regulations as may be necessary to carry 

into effect the provisions and purposes of this chapter. In the issuance of subpoenas, 

administration of oaths and taking of testimony, the provisions of the County and 

Municipal Investigations Law, N.J.S. 2A:67A-1 et seq., shall apply. 

 

a. Subject to the terms and conditions of N.J.S.A. 40A:9-12.1, the position 

of a planning board member shall be deemed vacant upon a member’s 

absence for more than six consecutive weeks, or three consecutive 

meetings, whichever shall be of longer duration, without being excused, 

within the term for the position held by the individual.  

b. All members and alternate members of the planning board, except for 

the Class II member, shall be municipal residents of the Borough of 

Manasquan. 

 

Section 2:  Construction and effective date 

(a) Should any section or provision of this ordinance be held invalid in any proceedings, 

the same shall not affect any other section or provision of this ordinance, except 

insofar as the section or provisions so held invalid shall be inseparable from the 

remainder of any such section or provision. 

(b) Chapter 97, et seq., of the Borough of Manasquan Code and all ordinances and parts 

of ordinances inconsistent with this Ordinance herewith are hereby repealed. 

(c) This ordinance shall become effective following its final passage and publication 

according to the law. 

22

Item 12.



NOTICE 

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that Ordinance No. 2381-22 is being 

introduced at a meeting of the Mayor and Council of the Borough of Manasquan on the 

6th day of September 2022 and read for the first time.  The said Ordinance is going to 

be considered for final passage by the Mayor and Council at Borough Hall, 201 East 

Main Street, Manasquan, NJ 08736 at 7:00p.m. on the 19th day of September 2022.  At 

such time and place, or at any such time or place to which said meting may be adjourned, 

all interested persons will be given an opportunity to be heard concerning said 

ordinance.  A copy of this ordinance can be obtained without cost by any member of the 

general public at the office of the Municipal Clerk in Borough Hall between the hours 

of 9:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. on Monday through Friday, except on legal holidays. 

 

      _________________________________ 

      BARBARA ILARIA, RMC, CMC 

      Municipal Clerk 

 

Mark G. Kitrick, Esquire 

Municipal Attorney 

2329 Route 34 S  

Suite 104 

Manasquan, NJ  08736 

 

 

Passed on First Reading and Introduction: September 6, 2022 

Approved on Second Reading and Final Hearing: September 19, 2022 

 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

Edward G. Donovan 

Mayor 

    

 

23

Item 12.



BOROUGH OF MANASQUAN 

ORDINANCE NO. 2383-22 

 

ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND SUPPLEMENT THE 

DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS AND ZONING 

ORDINANCE OF THE BOROUGH OF MANASQUAN 

AND TO ADOPT THE REVISED OFFICIAL ZONING 

MAP OF THE BOROUGH 

 

Statement of Purpose: The purpose of this Ordinance is to adopt an updated 

and revised Official Zoning Map of the Borough for inclusion in the Development 

Regulations and Zoning Ordinance of the Borough to accurately depict the Borough’s 

Zoning Districts. 

WHEREAS, the Borough Council has determined that it is in the public interest 

to update the current Official Zoning Map, last revised in November 2008; and 

WHEREAS, the firm of Leon S. Avakian, Inc., a professional engineering 

consulting firm retained by the Borough, has prepared an updated Official Map revised 

to April 11, 2022, a copy of which is attached hereto; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOROUGH 

COUNCIL OF THE BOROUGH OF MANASQUAN IN THE COUNTY OF 

MONMOUTH, AND STATE OF NEW JERSEY, as follows: 

Section 1. Article 4.2 of the Zoning Ordinance of the Borough of Manasquan entitled 

“Zoning Provisions” – Section 35 – entitled “Zoning Map” is hereby amended and 

revised at Section 35 and entitled “Zoning Map Adopted” to read as follows: 

a. Zoning Map Adopted: 

The boundaries of the zoning districts are established on the Zoning Map dated 

April 11, 2022 which is hereby made a part of this Ordinance. (The map may be 

found in the Chapter 35, Attachment 2) 

Section 2. All other provisions of the Zoning Ordinance of the Borough of Manasquan 

shall be unaffected and are hereby continued. 

Section 3. All other Ordinances, parts of Ordinances, or other local requirements that 

are inconsistent or in conflict with this Ordinance are hereby superseded to the extent 

of any inconsistency or conflict, and the provisions of this Ordinance shall apply. 

Section 4. This Ordinance shall be so construed as not to conflict with any provision of 

New Jersey or Federal laws. Notwithstanding that any provision of this Ordinance is, 

for any reason, held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a Court of competent 

jurisdiction, such a decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this 

Ordinance, which shall continue to be of full force and effect. The provisions of this 

Ordinance shall be cumulative with, and not in substitution for, all other applicable 

zoning, planning and land use regulations. 

Section 5. The Borough Clerk is hereby directed to give notice at least ten days prior to 

hearing on the adoption of this Ordinance to the County Planning Board and to all other 

persons entitled to notice pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40:55D-15 and N.J.S.A. 40:55D-63 (if 

required). Upon the adoption of this Ordinance after public hearing thereon, the 

Borough Clerk is further directed to publish notice of the passage thereof and to file a 

copy of the Ordinance as finally adopted with the Monmouth County Planning Board 

as required by N.J.S.A. 40:55D-16. 

Section 6. This Ordinance shall take effect as provided by law. 

 

 

 

24

Item 13.



NOTICE 

 

 PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that Ordinance No. 2383-22 was 

introduced at a meeting of the Mayor and Borough Council of Manasquan on the 15th 

day of August, 2022 and was then read for the first time.  The said ordinance will be 

further considered for final passage by the Mayor and Council at 7:00 p.m. on the 19th 

day of September, 2022.  At such time and place, or at any such time or place to which 

said meeting may be adjourned, all persons interested will be given an opportunity to 

be heard concerning said ordinance.  A copy of this ordinance can be obtained without 

cost by any member of the general public the office of Municipal Clerk in Borough Hall 

between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. on Monday through Friday, except on 

legal holidays. 

 

        

      ____________________________ 

      BARBARA ILARIA, RMC, CMC 

      Municipal Clerk 

 

 

 

 

MARK G. KITRICK, ESQ. 

Municipal Attorney 

2329 Route 34 South 

Suite 104 

Manasquan, NJ  08736 

 

 

STATEMENT 

 

 This ordinance published herewith has been finally adopted on September 19, 

2022 and the twenty (20) day period of limitation within which a suit, action or 

proceeding questioning the validity of such ordinance can be commenced, as provided 

by law, has begun to run from the date of the first publication of said statement. 

 

 

      ____________________________ 

      BARBARA ILARIA, RMC, CMC 

      Municipal Clerk 

 

 

Passed on First Reading and Introduction: August 15, 2022  

Approved on Second Reading and Final Reading:  October 3, 2022 

 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

EDWARD G. DONOVAN 

Mayor 

 

25

Item 13.



26

Item 13.



Original Full Size Plans Signed and Sealed 
  By Ray Carpenter, PE, on Sept. 1, 2022

27

Item 16.



 

 

 
 
 
August 30, 2022 
 
 
Albert D Yodakis, PE, PP 
Planning Board Engineer 
Borough of Manasquan 
Boro Engineering 
23 W Larchmont Drive 
Colts Neck, NJ 07722 
 
RE:  Boro File No.  MSPB-R1690 
 Amended Site Plan – Manasquan VFW Lodge 1838 

Block 43, Lot 4.01 
 R-2 – Residential Zone 
 Borough of Manasquan, Monmouth County, NJ 
 
Dear Mr. Yodakis: 
 
As recently discussed, I have been asked by the VFW to represent them regarding their revised 
Site Plan at their upcoming meeting with Manasquan Planning Board on September 13, 2022. 
 
For reference I have attached a copy of their Attorney’s Notice of Hearing and a revised Site Plan, 
prepared by R.C. Associates, but containing revisions directed by me, addressing your comments 
to the prior site plan review by you on November 4, 2021.  Copy of you prior review letter is also 
attached for reference. 
 
My comments below and how they have been addressed in the revised site plan correspond to 
the numbered order in your November 4, 2021 letter. 
 
General 
 
As indicated in your letter, the applicant requests approval of a constructed outside bar, ADA 
table, and added Temporary Bar, all covered by seasonal canopies.  (In the prior site plan the ADA 

28

Item 16.



 

 

table was labeled as a bar, however the purpose is to accommodate wheel chair patrons, as a 
high table, no serving occurs there)  
 
Zoning 
 
2a. In reviewing the prior resolution, 21-2013, the lot coverage issue was previously 
addressed on page 3, paragraph 6B. but the coverage % was incorrect and has now been 
corrected to 59.56% from 59.81% 
 
2b. The rear shed has been relocated to be 5’ off the rear property line, and is so indicated on 
the revised plan. 
 
2c. This is correct, the two existing accessory buildings are the garage storage building and 
the shed. 
 
2d. This is correct, the mason, in laying out the building, incorrectly laid out the length 2.1’ 
longer than originally proposed and .2’ wider than originally proposed, resulting in 48.42 sf over 
the originally proposed 600 sf.  Those as-built dimensions are indicated on the revised plan. 
 
4 & 5 To be addressed by the applicant. 
 
6. Aside from low wattage landscape type lighting, there is one large ship light, indicated on 
the revised plan, which is more for esthetics, and only has a 60 watt lamp in it, hanging 8’ above 
grade, and pointing straight down.  None of the lighting extends beyond the property lines and if 
at any time it’s determined that any does, it will be corrected immediately.  
 
7. The only signage on the property, as indicated on the revised plan is: 

• The VFW sign in front yard 
• The handicap parking sign at the handicap parking spaces 
• A stop sign at the exit 
• A no exit sign at the entrance 

 
8. In reviewing the site conditions, I determined that the drainage for the roof drains from 
the new building were not installed as originally proposed.  The applicant is proposing to correct 
this by installing additional modified drainage, indicated on the revised site plan, resulting in the 
same storm water storage capacity as originally proposed.  
 

29

Item 16.



 

 

9. There are no grade changes proposed, and the entire area is virtually at the same grade. 
 
10. The site plan has been cleaned up as suggested, showing only existing and proposed. 
 
11. Correct, no trees are to be removed. 
 
Additionally 
 
On the original site plan from October 25, 2021, there was a shower shown on the north side of 
the garage and storge building within the side setback.  This has been removed.  
 
 
If you have any questions regarding the changes I’ve made to the site drawing, please contact me 
at 908 770-8320.  
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
     
Joseph Griffin, PE 
Griffin Engineering, LLC 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

30

Item 16.



 

BOROUGH OF MANASQUAN PLANNING BOARD 
NOTICE OF HEARING  

 
 

TO: PROPERTY OWNER: 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on the 13th day of September, 2022, at 7:00 p.m., a hearing will be held 
before the Manasquan Borough Planning Board and will be conducted virtually on the appeal or 
application of the undersigned for approval of Minor Site Plan with Bulk Variances resulting in the 
expansion of the existing non-conforming use and any and all other relief for property located in the R-2 
Zone and known as 30 Ridge Avenue, Manasquan, New Jersey also known as Block 43, Lot 4.01 on the 
Borough Tax Map for approval of an outdoor bar, and an ADA compliant concrete table in the rear yard 
to permit wheelchair access. 

 The Applicant requests relief from the Zoning Ordinances of the Borough of Manasquan 
including the following: Section 35-5.3 - R-2 Zone - Permitted Use - Only one single family dwelling 
permitted; social club existing and proposed; Section 35-5.2b—Maximum Number of Accessory Bldgs.: 
1 building permitted; 1 building existing; and 2 buildings proposed; Section 35-18.3 Planning Board 
approval required for proposed Minor Site Plan; Accessory Bldg. Area (16 x 6 Shed and Garage)600 SF 
permitted; 649 SF existing; 649 SF proposed. 

 The Applicant intends to maintain the following existing non-conformities which will not be 
modified by this application: Section 35-9.4—Front Yard Setback— 25 ft required; 24.62 ft previously 
approved; 24.82 ft. revised; Lot Coverage—45% permitted, 59.56% proposed (62.44% existing and 
approved by Resolution #21-2013). The Applicant reserves the right to request any and all submission 
and design waivers, and variances, which the Planning Board deems necessary for the approval of the 
proposed project. 

The virtual meeting link is https://zoom.us/join, using the Virtual Meeting ID – 665 207 6223, with 
the Password – 365120 and the local access phone number is +1 646 876 9923 US (New York), or you may 
find your local number at https://zoom.us/u/aeeVjna053. 

 
The application, maps, plans and related supporting materials will be available for public inspection 

in person at least ten (10) days before the public hearing at the Manasquan Municipal Building, located at 
201 East Main Street, Manasquan during regular business hours between 9:00 am and 3:00 pm, Monday 
through Friday (excluding holidays).  The documents will also be posted to the website prior to the meeting 
date at https://www.manasquan-nj.gov/node/615/agenda .You may also contact the board secretary at 
msalerno@manasquan-nj.gov or the Board Attorney George McGill at gdm@mcgillhall.com or 732-618-
2447. Any interested party may appear at the said hearing and participate therein in accordance with the 
rules of the Planning Board. 

 
       MANASQUAN VFW LODGE 1838 

       Address: 30 Ridge Ave, Manasquan, NJ  
       Applicant 
 
       /C. Keith Henderson, Esq./   
       C. KEITH HENDERSON, ESQ. 
       Attorney for the Applicant 

31

Item 16.

https://www.manasquan-nj.gov/node/615/agenda


32

Item 16.



33

Item 16.



 

 

23 W. Larchmont Drive, Colts Neck, NJ  07722                                                                       732-996-7076 
 

           

           September 7, 2022 
                      
 
Barbara Ilaria, Secretary 
Manasquan Borough Planning Board 
201 East Main Street 
Manasquan, NJ 08736 
 
Re: Boro File No. MSPB-R1690 
 Amended Site Plan – Manasquan VFW Lodge 1838 
 Block 43, Lot 4.01 
 30 Ridge Avenue 
 R-2 - Residential Zone 
 Borough of Manasquan, Monmouth County, NJ 
 
Dear Ms. Ilaria: 
 
As per your request, I have reviewed the above-referenced application in accordance with the provisions of 
the Borough Land Development Ordinance.  The documents reviewed in conjunction with this application 
include: 
 

1. Amended Site Plan prepared by Ray Carpenter, PE, of R.C. Associates, Inc., dated 
October 11, 2012, last revised August 29, 2022. 
 

2. Architectural Layout prepared by Brian Collins, RA, dated March 24, 2021. 
 

3. Plan of Survey prepared by Charles O’Malley, PLS, dated March 4, 2021. 
 

The property is located in the R-2 - Residential Zone with frontage on Ridge Avenue.  With this application, 

the applicant proposes to maintain an outdoor bar connected to the existing rear building, and an additional 

outdoor bar in the rear yard, which will both be covered by seasonal canopies. The application was 

previously deemed complete on September 9, 2021.               

The following are our comments and recommendations regarding this application: 
 
  Zoning 

 
1. The property is located in the R-2 – Residential Zone.  The existing VFW Lodge is an 

existing non-conforming use in the zone and the proposed improvements constitute 
an expansion of the existing non-conforming use.  

 
2. The following bulk (‘c’) variances are required as part of this application: 

 
a. A maximum lot coverage of 45% is permitted, whereas a coverage of 59.56% 

is proposed (62.44% exists). 
 

b. Addressed.  The rear shed is proposed to be relocated to meet the required 5 
feet rear yard setback. 
 
 
 

34

Item 16.



  
        

 
Re: Boro File No. MSPB-R1690               September 7, 2022 
 Amend. Site Plan – Manasquan VFW            Sheet 2 
 Block 43, Lot 4.01 

 
 

c. One accessory building is permitted, whereas two accessory buildings exist 
and are proposed. 
 

d. A maximum accessory building of 600 square feet permitted, whereas a 
building of 649 square feet exists and is proposed (600 square feet previously 
indicated). 

 
3. The following non-conformities exist on Lot 4.01 and are not proposed to be modified 

as part of this application: 
 

a. A minimum front yard setback of 25 feet is required, whereas a setback of 24.8 
feet exists and is proposed. 

 
4. The applicant should explain the use of the outdoor bar area, including hours of 

operation, dates of use of the seasonal canopy, and outdoor music or PA systems.  
 

5. There is a sizeable seating area under the canopy area which should be explained to the 
Board.  The seating capacity should also be discussed as relates to parking requirements 
and the existing number of spaces on site. 
 

6. The applicant has indicated the site lighting on the plan and has agreed to comply with 
the ordinance so there is no spillage beyond the property lines.   
 

7. Addressed. The site signage has been shown on the revised plan.  
 

8. The applicant has acknowledged that the previously approved drainage system was not 
installed in accordance with the previously approved plans.  A revised drainage system 
in accordance with the Borough’s stormwater ordinance is proposed in the same area 
as originally designed.  I suggest clean-outs be added to the downstream end of the 
system for future maintenance.  Inspection of the system installation will also be 
required.  
 

9. Grades have not been shown to demonstrate handicap accessibility however no grading 
changes are proposed the existing grades which appear sufficient to meet code 
requirements. 
 

10. Addressed.  The plan has been revised as requested to shown the existing and proposed 
improvements. 
 

11. No trees are to be removed as part of the application.  
 

Should you have any questions or desire any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me. 
 
       Very truly yours, 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       ALBERT D. YODAKIS, P.E., P.P. 
       PLANNING BOARD ENGINEER 
       BOROUGH OF MANASQUAN 

35

Item 16.



  
        

 
Re: Boro File No. MSPB-R1690               September 7, 2022 
 Amend. Site Plan – Manasquan VFW            Sheet 3 
 Block 43, Lot 4.01 
      
 
ADY:jy 
 
 
cc: George McGill, esq., Planning Board Attorney  
 Michael Henderson, esq. 
  C. Keith Henderson & Associates, 52 Abe Voorhees Drive, Manasquan, NJ  08736 
 Ray Carpenter, PE, PP 
  R.C. Associates, 2517 Route 35, Bldg J, Suite 102, Manasquan, NJ  08736 
 Griffin Engineering 
  PO Box 316, Sea Girt, NJ   
 Manasquan VFW Lodge 1838 
  30 Ridge Avenue, Manasquan, NJ  08736 

36

Item 16.



37

Item 16.



38

Item 16.



39

Item 16.



40

Item 16.



41

Item 16.



42

Item 16.



43

Item 16.



E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 1

S
T

O
R

Y

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 1

S
T

O
R

Y

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

S
IT
E
 
S
K
E
T
C
H

N

44

Item 16.



45

Item 16.



46

Item 16.



47

Item 16.



48

Item 16.



 

 

23 W. Larchmont Drive, Colts Neck, NJ  07722                                                                       732-996-7076 
 

           

          September 9, 2021 
                     Revised November 4, 2021 
 
Mary Salerno, Secretary 
Manasquan Borough Planning Board 
201 East Main Street 
Manasquan, NJ 08736 
 
Re: Boro File No. MSPB-R1690 
 Amended Site Plan – Manasquan VFW Lodge 1838 
 Block 43, Lot 4.01 
 30 Ridge Avenue 
 R-2 - Residential Zone 
 Borough of Manasquan, Monmouth County, NJ 
 
Dear Ms. Salerno: 
 
As per your request, I have reviewed the above-referenced application in accordance with the provisions of 
the Borough Land Development Ordinance.  The documents reviewed in conjunction with this application 
include: 
 

1. Amended Site Plan prepared by Ray Carpenter, PE, of R.C. Associates, Inc., dated 
October 11, 2012, last revised October 25, 2021. 
 

2. Architectural Layout prepared by Brian Collins, RA, dated March 24, 2021. 
 

3. Plan of Survey prepared by Charles O’Malley, PLS, dated March 4, 2021. 
 

The property is located in the R-2 - Residential Zone with frontage on Ridge Avenue.  With this application, 

the applicant proposes to construct an outdoor bar connected to the existing rear building, and an additional 

outdoor bar in the rear yard, which will both be covered by seasonal canopies. The application was 

previously deemed complete on September 9, 2021.               

The following are our comments and recommendations regarding this application: 
 
  Zoning 

 
1. The property is located in the R-2 – Residential Zone.  The existing VFW Lodge is an 

existing non-conforming use in the zone and the proposed improvements constitute 
an expansion of the existing non-conforming use.  

 
2. The following bulk (‘c’) variances are required as part of this application: 

 
a. A maximum lot coverage of 45% is permitted, whereas a coverage of 59.56% 

is proposed (revised from 62.86%, 62.44% exists). 
 

b. A minimum rear yard setback of 5 feet is required, whereas a setback of 2.5 
feet exists and is proposed to the rear shed (the exact distance is now provided, 
“approximately 2 feet” previously indicated). 
 
 

49

Item 16.



  
        

 
Re: Boro File No. MSPB-R1690               November 4, 2021 
 Amend. Site Plan – Manasquan VFW            Sheet 2 
 Block 43, Lot 4.01 

 
c. One accessory building is permitted, whereas two accessory buildings exist 

and are proposed. 
 

d. A maximum accessory building of 600 square feet permitted, whereas a 
building of 649 square feet exists and is proposed (600 square feet previously 
indicated). 

 
3. The following non-conformities exist on Lot 4.01 and are not proposed to be modified 

as part of this application: 
 

a. A minimum front yard setback of 25 feet is required, whereas a setback of 24.8 
feet exists and is proposed. 

 
4. The applicant should explain the use of the outdoor bar area, including hours of 

operation, dates of use of the seasonal canopy, and outdoor music or PA systems.  
 

5. There is a sizeable seating area under the canopy area which should be explained to the 
Board.  The seating capacity should also be discussed as relates to parking requirements 
and the existing number of spaces on site. 
 

6. Any outdoor lighting for the bar area should be shown and lighting levels indicated.   
 

7. Any additional proposed signage should be shown on the plans.  
 

8. A drainage recharge system in accordance with the Borough’s stormwater ordinance is 
not required as the proposed improvements do not increase the building footprint or 
impervious coverage by more than 500 square feet.   The previously required drainage 
recharge system appears to have been installed in general conformance with the 
previous Board approval however the pop up emitter could not be located and should 
either be installed or uncovered so the system may work properly.  
 

9. Grades have not been shown to demonstrate handicap accessibility however if no 
grading changes are proposed the existing grades appear sufficient to meet code 
requirements. 
 

10. If the application is approved, the plans should be modified to only show the proposed 
improvements as part of this application.  Previously approved improvements which 
are not to be constructed should be removed from the plan. 
 

11. No trees are to be removed as part of the application.  
 
 

Should you have any questions or desire any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me. 
 
       Very truly yours, 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       ALBERT D. YODAKIS, P.E., P.P. 
       PLANNING BOARD ENGINEER 
       BOROUGH OF MANASQUAN 

50

Item 16.



  
        

 
Re: Boro File No. MSPB-R1690               November 4, 2021 
 Amend. Site Plan – Manasquan VFW            Sheet 3 
 Block 43, Lot 4.01 
      
 
ADY:jy 
 
 
cc: George McGill, esq., Planning Board Attorney  
 Michael Henderson, esq. 
  C. Keith Henderson & Associates, 52 Abe Voorhees Drive, Manasquan, NJ  08736 
 Ray Carpenter, PE, PP 
  R.C. Associates, 2517 Route 35, Bldg J, Suite 102, Manasquan, NJ  08736 
 Manasquan VFW Lodge 1838 
  30 Ridge Avenue, Manasquan, NJ  08736 

51

Item 16.



52

Item 17.



53

Item 17.



54

Item 17.



55

Item 17.



56

Item 17.



57

Item 17.



58

Item 17.



59

Item 17.



60

Item 17.



61

Item 17.



62

Item 17.



63

Item 17.



64

Item 17.



65

Item 17.



66

Item 17.



67

Item 17.



68

Item 17.



69

Item 17.



70

Item 17.



71

Item 17.



72

Item 17.



73

Item 17.



74

Item 17.



75

Item 17.



76

Item 17.



77

Item 17.



78

Item 17.



79

Item 17.



80

Item 17.



81

Item 17.



82

Item 17.



83

Item 17.



84

Item 17.



85

Item 17.



86

Item 17.



87

Item 17.



88

Item 17.



89

Item 17.



90

Item 17.



91

Item 17.



92

Item 17.



93

Item 17.



94

Item 17.



95

Item 17.



96

Item 17.



97

Item 17.



98

Item 17.



99

Item 17.



100

Item 17.



101

Item 17.



102

Item 17.



103

Item 17.



104

Item 17.


	Top
	Item 1.	Approval of Vouchers
	Item 2.	Regular Meeting Minutes - December 14, 2021
	Item 3.	Regular Meeting Minutes - December 21, 2021
	Item 4.	Regular Meeting Minutes - July 5, 2022
	Item 5.	Special Meeting Minutes - July 19, 2021
	Item 6.	Perotti, Thomas - 77 Ocean Avenue - Block 157 Lot 20.01 - Application #31-2021 -Request for Extension on Granted Variances
	Item 7.	2375-22 AMENDING CHAPTER 13 (PROPERTY MAINTENANCE) AND ESTABLISHING SECTION 13-7 (BAMBOO AND INVASIVE PLANTS)
	2375-22 Amending Ch 13 Establishing Bamboo Invasive Plants

	Item 8.	2376-22 AMENDING AND SUPPLEMENTING CHAPTER 28 (STORMWATER REGULATIONS), SECTION 28-1.2 (APPLICABILITY) AND SECTION 28-1.3 (GENERAL REGULATIONS), AND CHAPTER 35 (ZONING), SECTION 35-7.5 (WALLS AND FENCES)
	2376-22 Amending Ch 28 Stormwater Regulations Ch 35 Walls and Fences

	Item 9.	2377-22 AMENDING AND SUPPLEMENTING CHAPTER 35 (ZONING), SECTION 35-11.8 (ADDITIONAL LOT, HEIGHT AND YARD REQUIREMENTS), SECTION 35-3.1 (DEFINITIONS), SECTION 35-11.2 (PRINCIPAL BUILDINGS), SCHEDULE 1, ATTACHMENT 1:2 (ZONING SCHEDULE OF BULK AND COVERAGE CONTROLS) AND SECTION 35-11.6 (SWIMMING POOLS)
	2377-22 Amemding Ch 35 Yard Requirements, Principal Bldg, Zoning Schedule

	Item 10.	2378-22 AMENDING CHAPTER 35 (ZONING), AND ESTABLISHING SECTION 35-11.9.1 (OUTDOOR SHOWERS)
	2378-22 Amending Ch 35 Establishing Outdoor Shower

	Item 11.	2380-22 AMENDING AND SUPPLEMENTING CHAPTER 35 (ZONING), SECTION 35-25.2 (PERMITTED SIGNS) AND SECTION 35-25.3 (REGULATIONS APPLICABLE TO ALL ZONES)
	2380-22 Amending Ch 35 Signs

	Item 12.	2381-22 AMENDING AND SUPPLEMENTING CHAPTER 31 (PLANNING BOARD), SECTION 31-13 (RULES AND REGULATIONS)
	2381-22 Amending Ch 31 Planning Board Rules and Regulations

	Item 13.	2383-22 AMEND AND SUPPLEMENT THE DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS AND ZONING ORDINANCE - ZONING MAP UPDATE
	2383-22 Zoning Map Amendment
	2383-22 New Map

	Item 14.	#30-2022 120 South Street, LLC - 120 South Street - Block 70 Lot 2.04 - Application #04-2022
	Item 15.	#31-2022  LeBlanc, Kenneth & Ellen - 117 First Avenue - Block 168 Lot 6 - Application #09-2022
	Item 16.	#43-2021 - VFW Lodge 1838 - 30 Ridge Avenue - block 43 Lot 4.01 (carried from 8/2/2022)
	A-7 Amended Site Plan Revised August 29, 2022
	A-8 Letter from Griffin Engineering to al Yodakis dated Augustt 30, 2022 addressing comments
	B-3 Engineer's Letter Dated September 7, 2022
	A-1 Signed Application 8-27-21
	A-2 Denial Letter Dated October 14 2020
	A-3 Survey (5)
	A-4 Amended Site Plan dated 7-26-2021
	A-5 Architural Drawing Dated March 24, 2021
	A-6 Amended Site Plan dated October 25, 2021
	B-1 Engineer's Letter Dated September 9 2021
	B-2 Engineer's Revised Letter Dated November 4, 2021

	Item 17.	#11-2022 Henry, James Appeal of Zoning Officer's Decision - 85 Morris Avenue - Block 71 Lot 108
	A-1 Letter from Prime & Tuvel Dated May 31, 2022 Filing Appeal
	A-2 Letter from Zoning Officer Dated My 9, 2022
	A-3 Letter from Zoning Officer Dated MAY 11, 2022
	A-4 Letter from Zoning Office Dated October 1, 2020
	A-5 Letter from Zoning Officer Dated October 31, 2018
	A-6 Application to Division of Land Resource Prooeteciton Dated  June 9, 2022
	A-7 Letter to Henry from Stated Dated October 26,, 2018
	A-8 Letter to Henry from State  Dated December 7, 2021
	A-9 Preliiminary FEMA Map Exhibt Dated August 10, 2022
	A-10 Grading and Drainage Plan
	A-11 Proposed New Accessory Structure Dated
	A-12 Plot Plan
	A-13 Letter from Zoning Officer Dated January 26, 2022
	A-14 Letter to Zoning Officer Dated July 26, 2022 regarding 85 & 83 Morris

	Item 18.	Cancel September 20, 2022 Special Meeting Date
	Item 19.	Executive Session
	Bottom

